
 
AMENDMENT #1: 2020-31019A NATIONAL URBAN INNOVATION PROJECT 
FEASIBILITY STUDY 
POC: Meron Hagos, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Feasibility Study for the National Urban 
Innovation Project is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are attached. 
 
Please provide the breakdown of scores for the respective key personnel roles.   

All information on award criteria can be found in Section 4 of the RFP. 

Will there be an opportunity for an oral presentation as a key part of the evaluation 
process? 

There will not be an opportunity for an oral presentation as part of the evaluation process.   

Will USTDA accept key personnel who are non-US citizens from other countries should the 
offeror have personnel with qualifications that would benefit the assignment? 

Information on nationality requirements can be found in the Grant Agreement under Annex II: 
Mandatory Contract Clauses, section C.  As stated in section C:  

the following provisions shall govern the delivery of goods and professional services 
funded by Grant Funds under the Grant Agreement: 
(1) the Contractor and all Subcontractors that are legal entities must be U.S. Firms; 
(2) all natural persons who perform any part of the Study as the Contractor, as a 
Subcontractor, or as an employee of the Contractor or any Subcontractor, in each case, 
must be (a) U.S. citizens, (b) non-U.S. citizens lawfully admitted for permanent residence 
in the United States, or (c) non-U.S. citizens lawfully admitted to work in the United 
States; 
(3) notwithstanding the provisions of Clauses C(1) and C(2), up to twenty percent (20%) 
of the Grant Funds may be used to pay for work performed in connection with the Study 
by (a) Subcontractors that are organized as legal entities under the laws of the Host 
Country, and/or (b) natural persons working as a Subcontractor, or as employees of the 
Contractor or any Subcontractor, in each case, who are citizens of the Host Country; 
(4) a Host Country Subcontractor may only be used for specific services from the Terms 
of Reference identified in the Subcontract; 
(5) no part of the Grant Funds disbursed in connection with the performance of the Study 
may be used to pay (a) any legal entity that is incorporated or organized under the laws of 
a jurisdiction other than one of the United States or the Host Country, or (b) a natural 
person who is a citizen of a country other than the United States (except as expressly 
provided in Clause C(2)) or the Host Country; and 
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(6) goods purchased for the performance of the Study and associated delivery services 
(e.g., 
international transportation and insurance) must have their nationality, Source and Origin 
in the United States; provided, however, that goods and services incidental to Study 
support (e.g., local lodging, food and transportation) in the Host Country are not subject 
to the foregoing restrictions. 
 

Would USTDA accept minimum 10 years of experience for key personnel, except for the 
Team Lead role, if the personnel meet all other criteria? 

Scoring criteria for key personnel is listed in section 4.3 of the RFP.  Offerors proposing 
personnel lacking  the desired experience level should expect to have their score impacted in 
proposal review. 

Does the budget amount of $1,500,059 exclude applicable statutory taxes to be levied by 
Government of India on corresponding Offeror services? 

As stated in Section N of the Grant Agreement, Annex II Mandatory Contract Clauses: Grant 
Funds provided under the Grant Agreement shall not be used to pay any taxes, tariffs, duties, 
fees or other levies imposed under laws in effect in the Host Country, except for taxes of a de 
minimis nature imposed on local lodging, food, transportation or airport arrivals or departures. 

Please describe any relevant cybersecurity concerns, platform limitations, or other 
technology considerations that you would like the Offeror to consider for the approach to 
this study. 

All relevant cybersecurity concerns, platform limitations, or other technology considerations that 
you would like the Offeror to consider for the approach to this study are listed in the RFP. 

Please confirm if USTDA would be open to adjusting the timeline for deliverables in month 
T+3 and T+4 by up to two weeks while keeping the overall duration of the project at six 
months? For example, postpone deliverable #4 to T+3.5 months milestone date. 

Adjusting the timeline for deliverables can be considered by the grantee, India’s Ministry of 
Housing and Urban Affairs. 

Given that inquiries are due by 11/3 by 12pm EST, will the submission timeline be 
extended to give Offerors two-weeks’ time between the publication date of USTDA’s 
answers and the submission date? This will allow Offerors to respond to new input that 
may emerge from USTDA’s responses. 

USTDA is not considering extending the deadline at this time. 

Can you confirm that the awardee will be considered a contractor and not a sub-recipient 
under 2 C.F.R. 200? 

2 CFR does not apply to USTDA grants. USTDA can confirm the awardee will be considered a 
contractor and 2 CFR 200 doesn’t apply. 

We would like to understand that for the Task 2: Technical As-Is Assessment phase; is the 
Contractor required to undertake site visits on a physical basis for interactions with the 



stakeholders or whether they are required to perform analysis based on the documents 
available with the Ministry.   

To the greatest extent possible, the Grantee, India’s Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, is 
authorized to permit the contractor to virtually conduct in-person tasks.  Such decision must be 
made in consultation with USTDA. 

Given the current pandemic issues, health concerns and travel restrictions associated, 
would the team from the U.S. be allowed to provide offsite support from U.S. and work will  
be done by the domestic / local team which shall work on an onsite / offsite mode. 

To the greatest extent possible, the Grantee, India’s Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, is 
authorized to permit the contractor to virtually conduct in-person tasks.  Such decision must be 
made in consultation with USTDA. 

Please clarify: if additional resources / subject matter resources are required for the 
project, is the Contractor allowed to propose them as part of their bid response and will the 
Authority be evaluating those profiles for the overall success of the study initiative. 

In addition to key personnel as defined in section 4.3 of the RFP, bidders will be evaluated on the 
quality of their staff and subcontractors as defined in sections 3.4 and 4.2.3.  Additional subject 
matter resources proposed will be considered when evaluating bids. 

We request that the services of Indian subcontractors could be utilized for up to 40% of the 
USTDA grant.  

Exceptions to USTDA nationality requirements are not being considered for this activity.  
Information on nationality requirements can be found in the Grant Agreement under Annex II: 
Mandatory Contract Clauses, section C.  As stated in section C:  

the following provisions shall govern the delivery of goods and professional services 
funded by Grant Funds under the Grant Agreement: 
(1) the Contractor and all Subcontractors that are legal entities must be U.S. Firms; 
(2) all natural persons who perform any part of the Study as the Contractor, as a 
Subcontractor, or as an employee of the Contractor or any Subcontractor, in each case, 
must be (a) U.S. citizens, (b) non-U.S. citizens lawfully admitted for permanent residence 
in the United States, or (c) non-U.S. citizens lawfully admitted to work in the United 
States; 
(3) notwithstanding the provisions of Clauses C(1) and C(2), up to twenty percent (20%) 
of the Grant Funds may be used to pay for work performed in connection with the Study 
by (a) Subcontractors that are organized as legal entities under the laws of the Host 
Country, and/or (b) natural persons working as a Subcontractor, or as employees of the 
Contractor or any Subcontractor, in each case, who are citizens of the Host Country; 
(4) a Host Country Subcontractor may only be used for specific services from the Terms 
of Reference identified in the Subcontract; 
(5) no part of the Grant Funds disbursed in connection with the performance of the Study 
may be used to pay (a) any legal entity that is incorporated or organized under the laws of 
a jurisdiction other than one of the United States or the Host Country, or (b) a natural 
person who is a citizen of a country other than the United States (except as expressly 
provided in Clause C(2)) or the Host Country; and 



(6) goods purchased for the performance of the Study and associated delivery services 
(e.g., 
international transportation and insurance) must have their nationality, Source and Origin 
in the United States; provided, however, that goods and services incidental to Study 
support (e.g., local lodging, food and transportation) in the Host Country are not subject 
to the foregoing restrictions. 

 

We request USTDA to check if the a) existing eligibility criteria and b) conflict of interest 
clauses indicated in the RFP are adequate to avoid potential conflict of interests among 
participating firms. 

As stated in the Grant Agreement, Annex Mandatory Contract Clauses, Section L, USTDA’s 
conflict of interest requirements are as follows: 

(a) Except as otherwise agreed in writing by USTDA, no Contract Party, or any 
employee, executive, director, officer or other staff member of a Contract Party, may 
either directly or indirectly engage in any activity or maintain any relationship (any such 
activity or relationship, a “Conflict of Interest”) which might adversely affect the Study 
or the rights of USTDA, including but not limited to (i) ownership of a material interest 
in the other Contract Party, any supplier, contractor, distributor, Subcontractor, customer 
or other entity involved in the performance of the Study, (ii) acceptance of any material 
payment, service, loan, gift, trip, entertainment, or other favor from the other Contract 
Party, a supplier, contractor, distributor, Subcontractor, customer or other entity involved 
in the performance of the Study, (iii) any employee, executive, director, officer or other 
staff member of one Contract Party holding a position as an employee, executive, 
director, officer or other staff member of the other Contract Party or any supplier, 
contractor, distributor, Subcontractor, customer or other entity involved in the 
performance of the Study, and (iv) any condition or circumstance that would reasonably 
be expected to (A) cause one or more of the Contract Parties to be unable or potentially 
unable to render impartial assistance or advice, (B) impair the objectivity of the 
Contractor or any Subcontractor in performing the Study, or (C) create an unfair 
competitive advantage for any entity wherein either Contract Party has a material interest. 
(b) Neither the Client nor the employees, executives, directors, officers or other staff 
members of the Client may receive payment from the Grant Funds. (c) Any Contract 
Party shall promptly notify USTDA of any Conflict of Interest of which it becomes 
aware. 

An assignment of this magnitude having multiple modules will require extensive planning 
and preliminary research; 0.5 months to prepare the Inception Report may be inadequate 
and we request 1 month be allowed for submission of the Inception Report.  Further 
submission of Deliverable 2 be allowed at the end of T+2 months instead of T+ 1.5 months. 

Offerors who do not believe completing the work under the grant agreement in the proposed 
timeline should make this clear in their proposal. 

Regarding section 3.6, Experience and Qualifications, Is it a maximum of 6 project 
references for the consortium or 6 for each member? 



It is a maximum of 6 total for each proposal, inclusive of prime and subcontractors. 

In scoring Firm Experience/Project References, will the 15 points be equally divided 
between 4.2.1 to 4.2.5? 

In scoring firm experience and project references, points equally divided between 4.2.1 to 4.2.5. 

Regarding: Page 14, Section 4.2, Sub-section 4.2.5 requiring: specific experience of the 
Firm in implementing at least 2 assignments in the last 5 years in India, related to 
consultancy / technical assistance in the urban areas in the field of data driven 15 
governance, or capacity building or innovation. Further, the assignment should include 
design / development of digital platforms Request for a relaxation on this requirement and 
allow the experience of the consortium to be considered rather than just the lead US firm.  
Can this requirement be relaxed and allow the experience of the consortium to be 
considered rather than just the lead US firm? 

Offerors who cannot meet this requirement should highlight the experience of subcontractors 
who may meet this requirement. 

 


